Minutes of Regular Meeting The Board of Trustees Duncanville ISD

A Regular Meeting of the Board of Trustees of Duncanville ISD was held Monday, March 17, 2025, 6:30 PM in the Duncanville ISD Education Plaza, 710 S. Cedar Ridge Drive, Duncanville, TX 75137.

1. CALL TO ORDER AT 6:30 PM

President Dr. LaSonja Flowers called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. This meeting was called under the Texas Government Code 551.045.

Let the record show that a quorum of the Board of Trustees is present, that the meeting has been duly called and that the notice of this meeting has been posted in accordance with the Texas Open Meetings Act. Texas Government Code Chapter 551.

The following trustees were in attendance: Carla Fahey, Dr. LaSonja Flowers, Phil McNeely, Cassandra Phillips, Janice Savage-Martin, and Janet Veracruz. A quorum of the Board of Trustees was present, the meeting was duly called, and the notice of the meeting was posted in accordance with the Texas Open Meetings Act, Texas Government Code Chapter 551.

2. OPENING CEREMONIES

A. INVOCATION
Board Member
B. PLEDGE TO US FLAG AND TEXAS FLAG
Board Member

C. SUPERINTENDENT'S REPORT

Dr. T. Lamar Goree

1. UPDATE OF CURRENT DISTRICT EVENTS, INFORMATION, OPERATIONS, AND PROGRAMS

Dr. T. Lamar Goree

Dr. Goree presented the Superintendent's Report. Thank you very much, Madam President. If you look at the picture and look around the room, we have some wonderful basketball players. And tonight's cover story is a huge congratulations, there'll be more congratulations to come later in our meeting today, but congratulations to our Duncanville boys' basketball team for bringing home yet another state championship. I tell you guys, you truly help, not just for me, but I'm sure for many people in the room, kick off an amazing spring break. And again, we will celebrate you a little more later in the meeting.

I'd like to also pause for a moment just to recognize Women's History Month. As you know, March is set aside each year to celebrate the contributions of women in history. Women have played a key role in shaping society, breaking barriers, and building bridges. Their education and mentorship have created a lasting impact. Fostering leaders and change makers. Celebration of women's history inspires future

generations. So, enjoy this month to all our women.

Congratulations to the Youth & Government. Let's give him a round of applause. The Duncanville High School Youth & Government team competed at the YMCA Texas Youth & Government State Conference in Austin for the 12th year, joining over 1500 students from across the state. We're happy to say that we had 16 students to qualify to apply for the national competition, the Conference of National Affairs. I'm so proud to acknowledge as some of those students today, especially Preston Lee, who served as Governor, and Giselle Moreno, who serves as Attorney General. Can I ask them to please stand? I think they're in the audience. Wave your hands back here.

The right photo shows Preston signing the Elizabeth Cain bill into law, one of four bills passed at the conference, and the only one from Duncanville High School. Again, congratulations for the excellent recognition of our school system through that program.

I'd like to pause just to thank Senator West for inviting Duncanville ISD students to Austin last week. The Student Advisory Council is a great way to gain the perspective of students on legislative issues. We appreciate Senator West for providing our students with these volunteer opportunities, cultivating their leadership skills, and creating networking opportunities with community leaders. So, if you see Senator West in the community, make sure you tell him, "Thank you."

At this time, I'd offer congratulations to our Career Technical Student Organization, CTSO. If you're in the audience, would you please stand? I want those students to stand. I think many of them are in the office. Wave your hands so we can see you back there. Duncanville ISD CTE is excited to celebrate the incredible achievements of our CTSO champions. Our students have excelled in recent Skills USA, TSA, DECA, and HOSA competitions showcasing the power of hands-on learning and career preparation. A total of 97 students are headed to the Skills USA State Competition in Corpus Christi.

In TSA, which stands for Technology Students Association. 15 students are advancing to the state-level competition in Fort Worth. DECA is sending 31 students to Dallas, excelling in business fields like marketing, hospitality, and management. Meanwhile, five HOSA students are advancing to state in Round Rock, showcasing their skills in healthcare, particularly sports medicine and professional interviewing. We are so incredibly proud of our CTSO students and can't wait to see them shine at the state level. I'm sure from the announcement, they're going to be shining all over the state. Let's give them another round of applause.

I'm sure you can tell from the announcements that we have so many opportunities for students to really chase their wildest dreams and we're so excited that Duncanville ISD is hosting the Champions' Choice, an exciting family-friendly event this Saturday from 10:00 to 1:00 at Duncanville High School. We want to encourage everyone to come get a close-up look at the many opportunities available for children to excel, grow, and to succeed, explore pathways to success, like academic achievement, career technology, fine arts, and of course athletics. Enjoy a free petting zoo, food trucks, and meet and greet with teachers and leaders. Don't miss out on this fun opportunity. I want to encourage everyone to encourage people to go to our social sites where there's more information, and we want to really make sure that we bring our community as well as our friends in our neighboring communities out to see the wonderful things that we have to offer. We do have a quick promotion video that we will also tag on our social media so that we can encourage our community to really come out and enjoy this event.

Video: Hello, my name is Lamar Goree, and I have the incredible pleasure of serving as superintendent of the Duncanville Independent School District. In that capacity, I get to lead the City of Champions. I'd like to invite everyone out to our Champions' Choice program. When many of us think about a city of champions, we think about athletic or fine art championships. But what I want to share is that we're also a district that's committed to championship experiences in every classroom. I look forward to seeing everyone on March 22nd from 10:00-1:00 as we learn more about all of the incredible choices offered to children in our district. Whether you are entering kindergarten or you're in the 12th grade, there will be something for everyone. We are a school system that's all about creating those championship experiences for children every day.

Dr. Goree closed out his presentation. Thank you very much. And again, I look forward to seeing everyone on Saturday at the high school. Thank you, Madam President.

President Dr. Flowers stated. Thank you, Dr. Goree. I saw Coach Ford. Is Coach Ford still here? Coach Ford, several of us wore our Pantherettes sweatshirts last school board meeting, and I forgot to mention it. We wore the sweatshirts, but we want to acknowledge you and the Pantherettes on taking us as far as you did. So, congratulations to the Pantherettes.

D. RECOGNITIONS/COMMENDATIONS

Connie Wallace
1. DONATIONS
Connie Wallace

Ms. Connie Wallace presented Donations. Thank you, President Flowers, board of trustees, and Dr. Goree. At this time, I'd like to share with you all the many donations that we have received. Once again, our community continues to show up and show out when it comes to making things happen for our students. And so. this is the list of donations that we've received for the month of March. Are there any questions about the donations? Thank you.

2. THEATER IN OUR SCHOOLS MONTH

Ms. Connie Wallace presented Theater in Our Schools Month. I would like to share that March is Theater in Our Schools Month. And at this time, if I can have our theater students that are here today, if you'll please join me up front?

Theater in Our Schools month is a time to honor and raise awareness for theater programs in schools. It showcases how participation in school theater fosters essential skills like creativity, collaboration, and communication, preparing students for success in any career, whether or not they pursue the arts. The arts enhance academic performance. And studies show that students involved in the arts education tend to have higher GPAs, on standardized test scores they do better, their college attendance rate is higher, and it also shows that there are fewer students who are involved in the arts that drop out of school.

There are so many benefits to students participating in the arts. I think it's quite a few of you guys that are participating as you can see on this picture here, but they wanted to remind us that the arts

improve academic performance. The arts unify communities and the arts improve individual. And so, please join me in recognizing these students who are here tonight, advocating for Theater in Our District, and we support them. Recognizing that theater fosters creativity, self-expression, critical thinking, and builds skills and collaboration, confidence and communication. While there's three of you here, and I can put you on the spot, because y'all are theater students, right? Yes. Y'all are always ready to go. I'm just going to ask you to introduce yourself. Say your name and your grade.

Wilia stated. My name is Wilia [inaudible 00:13:25]. I am currently a senior.

Zaria Skills stated. My name is Zaria Skills, and I'm currently a junior.

Nathaniel Ross stated. My name's Nathaniel Ross, and I'm currently a senior.

Ms. Wallace continued the presentation. If I can ask everyone to join me in saying congratulations to these students. They've had an incredible season in theater, and they have many more things to come I think this season as well. Let's say congratulations to them with a round of applause.

3. BASKETBALL CHAMPIONS

Ms. Connie Wallace presented Basketball Champions. At this time, I would like to invite our Special Olympics basketball team and coaches, please stand. I want it to be known that this is our Duncanville ISD Special Olympics basketball team, and they have won gold medals. I say they're back-to-back because they won one week and then the next week, so they are back-to-back basketball champions twice in the '24-25 school year. The first tournament was held on February 8th in Highland Park, and they won the gold after earning silver last year. This is a testament to y'all's perseverance and determination to win a gold in 2025. But they didn't stop there. They went on to a second tournament that was held on February 22nd, and this team competed in the Dallas area Special Olympics tournament in Lewisville, and they secured the gold there as well. Let's hear it for these young.

We have a gift for them, a small token of our appreciation for their hard work and dedication. They are under the leadership of Coach Hawkins and Coach Dixon. Do they have any family members in the house tonight? Where are their family members? Do you all want to wave and be recognized? I see you there.

Thank you to all our young athletes on the Special Olympics team. We appreciate our players for their hard work, their determination, and we say a special thank you not only to the players, but also to their families and to the City of Champions community that went out, and they continue to support them as they play. Thank you and congratulations.

At this time, if I can have Coach Peavey to please join me at the podium. The Duncanville Boys have won six UIL-recognized state titles with three of them under your leadership 2019, 2021, and 2025. Kayden Edwards was our MVP.

When you see Coach Peavey coaching the team, he makes it look so effortless. It looks so easy. And we know that you have a very talented squad. We know that talent matters, but it also takes an amazing group of coaches and parents to cultivate that talent. And so, we really appreciate you, Coach Peavey,

for all that you do. I would like you to take a moment to say a few words and then we have a video recap before we invite the team up to give them a token of appreciation.

Coach Peavey added. Where do I begin? This was a very special group of players. I was saying this in the lobby, "We've been here before, we've won championships, and we've come before the school board, and I don't think we've ever had as many parents here as we have tonight when we got presented." Our parents are incredibly supportive of their kids, our community, and y'all. I can't tell you how important the school board is in helping us get to where we are, allowing us to play the schedule that we get to play got us ready to do what we did in the playoffs. There's no way we make this run in the playoffs if we don't play the schedule that we played this year. So, I want to thank y'all for allowing us to play the schedule that we got to play.

I think, looking at the guys right now, and it looks like a couple of them about to fall asleep on the wall, I'm exhausted. I know they are. This is a team that absolutely emptied their tank. To do what we did this year in the playoffs, it took everything. Very long year, very long two years, three years that these young men went through. But for them to persevere and to finish on top like they did, I'm extremely proud of them, of the coaching staff, and the community. And I'm just happy and grateful. Thank you.

Video: All right, fellas, you deserve to be here. You deserve to be here. Go get what's yours, and have fun. Have fun. Go forward and get what you deserve.

It's another great day to be a Panther. I am so incredibly proud of our boys' basketball team for not just winning district, for not just winning at all levels of the playoffs, but for going on to be the 6A state champion. Congratulations to Coach Peavey, and all the boys, and anyone associated with our amazing Duncanville boys' basketball program.

First of all, I want to say congratulations to the coaches, to Coach Peavy. We are truly a dynasty. The coaches did a fabulous job all year long, making adjustments, coming into a game against the team that had a number one player in the country. We did a phenomenal job as Duncanville City of Champions. Were legendary.

Congratulations, Panthers. A special shout out to all the parents, the coaches, the staff, and everybody that plays a part in this huge athletic program. You guys did an amazing job tonight. You've never stopped working, so cheers to you.

Super proud of boys, for their commitment and determination, and they just always give so much heart throughout the entire season. It's always a great day to be a Panther.

Maybe once is enough. By the end of the game, I want them to be happy to be here. Just happy to be part of our party, got it? So have some fun.

Ms. Wallace continued the presentation. We're going to ask our players and coaches to stick around because when we go to closed session in just a moment, we do want to get another picture of you all with your sign, if you don't mind. Thank you.

President Dr. Flowers stated. Thank you, Ms. Wallace. Coach McNeely shared some words with the team, and he didn't have a microphone and so Coach, I'm going to ask you, turn on your mic so we can

hear that too, please.

Trustee McNeely commented. I just told them that I'm really proud of them. They put Duncanville basketball back where it belongs. I was told by people at the first of the year that we couldn't win it this year because we're rebuilding and I told them, hell no, in Duncanville, we reload. That's all we do and I'm really proud of them.

President Dr. Flowers commented. I came in on the tail end of that. All I heard was we don't rebuild, we reload and I'm like oh, you have to repeat that.

4. INTRODUCTION OF DIRECTOR OF PURCHASING Pam Brown

Ms. Pam Brown introduced the Director of Purchasing. Good evening, Board President Flowers, Board of Trustees, and Dr. Goree. I am going to ask Mr. Markea Scott to join me at the stand.

We are excited to introduce Mr. Markea Scott as our new Director of Purchasing. With over 17 years of experience in procurement, merchandising, and contract management, Mr. Scott brings a wealth of experience and a strong commitment to operational excellence. Mr. Scott has experience with Army Air Force Exchange Services where he held various positions including Merchandising Assistant, and Buyer I and II. In these roles, he was responsible for managing complex categories, handling contract negotiations, and developing merchandising strategies.

He later joined the Dallas Independent School District in 2020 where he advanced to Buyer III, overseeing the procurement processes, conducting negotiations, and ensuring contract compliance within the district services. Mr. Scott holds a master's degree in science from Southern New Hampshire University. He also earned a Bachelor of Arts in finance and banking with a minor in marketing from Dillard University. We are excited about the leadership and expertise of Mr. Scott that he brings to this new role, and we look forward to his contributions to the continued success of Duncanville ISD's purchasing efforts. Please join us in welcoming Mr. Markea Scott as the new Director of Purchasing. Today was his first day, so we are excited to have him in Duncanville and he also has a family member in the audience. If you could just wave. Yeah. Thank you.

President Dr. Flowers stated. Mr. Kane, and your reps, I think we skipped you guys. Can you guys come down so that we can get a picture please? Good job.

3. COMMUNICATION FROM CITIZENS TO DISCUSS PENDING AGENDA ITEMS BEFORE THE BOARD

There was no communication from citizens to discuss pending agenda items.

4. CLOSED SESSION as authorized by the Texas Open Meetings Act, Texas Government Code Chapter 551.

The board went into closed session at 7:02 p.m.

A. CONSULTATION WITH THE BOARD ATTORNEY (§551.071)

Private Consultation with the Boards' attorney with respect to pending or contemplated litigation, settlement offers, and matters where the attorney's duty to the Board, pursuant to the code of professional responsibility of the State Bar of Texas, clearly conflicts with the provisions of the Open Meetings Act.

B. PURCHASE, EXCHANGE, LEASE, OR VALUE OF REAL PROPERTY (§551.072)

C. PERSONNEL (§551.074)

Appointments, Discipline, Dismissals, Duties, Employment, Evaluations, Extensions, Leaves of Absences, Non-Renewals and Proposals for Non-Renewals, Renewals, Reassignments, Retirements, and Settlements including potential reduction in force due to program change.

- 1. CONSIDER CONTRACT RECOMMENDATIONS FOR SENIOR LEADERSHIP TEAM
- 2. REDUCTION IN FORCE DUE TO PROGRAM CHANGE
- 3. SUPERINTENDENT EVALUATION
- 4. SUPERINTENDENT CONTRACT
- 5. RECONVENE IN OPEN SESSION AT 7:48 PM
- 6. TAKE ACTION ON ITEMS DISCUSSED IN CLOSED SESSION

There was no action taken on items discussed in closed session at this time.

7. CONSIDER APPROVAL OF CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS (ALL ITEMS MAY BE ACTED UPON AT THE SAME TIME BY THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES)

Trustee McNeely made a motion accept the consent agenda; Trustee Savage-Martin seconded the motion. Motion carries 6-0.

A. MEETING MINUTES

Jody Lofton

B. BUDGET AMENDMENTS

Brandy Mayo

C. FINANCIAL REPORTS

Brandy Mayo

D. BELL SCHEDULE

Tellauance Graham

E. TEKS VERIFICATION

Dr. Sam Nix

F. CONSIDER APPROVAL OF DUNCANVILLE HIGH SCHOOL HIGH HATS TO PERFORM ON BOARD A ROYAL CARIBBEAN CRUISE.

Dr. Sam Nix

G. CONSIDER APPROVAL OF DUNCANVILLE HIGH SCHOOL BAND TO TRAVEL TO GALVESTON AND HOUSTON, TX ON APRIL 25-27, 2025

Dr. Sam Nix

H. CONSIDER APPROVAL OF DUNCANVILLE HIGH SCHOOL THEATER DEPARTMENT TO TRAVEL TO BLOOMINGTON, INDIANA FOR THE INTERNATIONAL THESPIAN FESTIVAL ON JUNE 22-28,

2025

Dr. Sam Nix

I. CONSIDER APPROVAL OF DHS PANTHERS IMPACT SUMMER COLLEGE TOUR ON JULY 20 - AUGUST 3, 2025

Dr. Sam Nix

J. FACILITY NAMING: SMITH, CENTRAL BRANDENBURG, DANIEL, HARDIN Connie Wallace

8. CONSIDER APPROVAL OF ACTION AGENDA ITEMS

A. CANCELLATION OF THE SCHOOL BOARD ELECTION FOR MAY 3, 2025, TO ELECT TRUSTEES FOR PLACES 1, 2 and 3
Brandy Mayo

President Dr. Flowers stated. There is no presentation needed.

Trustee Savage-Martin made a motion for the cancellation of the school board election for May 3rd to elect trustees for places one, two, and three: Trustee Fahey seconded the motion. Motion carries 6-0.

B. CONSIDER THE APPROVAL OF CONTRACTS FOR THE SENIOR LEADERSHIP TEAM (SLT) FOR THE 2025-2026 SCHOOL YEAR Pam Brown

Trustee Savage-Martin made a motion to approve the recommendation of the Superintendent as presented to offer one-year term administrator contracts to the professional staff members listed; Trustee McNeely seconded the motion. Motion carries 6-0.

Trustee Savage-Martin made a motion to approve the recommendation of the Superintendent as presented to offer a one-year term professional contract to the professional staff member listed; Trustee Fahey seconded the motion. Motion carries 6-0.

Trustee Savage-Martin made a motion to approve the recommendation of the Superintendent as presented to offer one-year non-certified contracts to the professional staff members listed; Trustee F seconded the motion. Motion carries 6-0.

C. CONSIDER AND TAKE POSSIBLE ACTION UNDER DFFB (LOCAL) TO APPROVE A RESOLUTION DECLARING A REDUCTION IN FORCE DUE TO A PROGRAM CHANGE AND IDENTIFYING THE EMPLOYMENT AREAS AFFECTED

Pam Brown

Ms. Pam Brown presented Consider and Take Possible Action Under DB (Local) to Approve a Resolution Declaring a Reduction in Force Due to a Program Change and Identifying the Employment Areas Affected. Good evening, Madam President, Board of Trustees, and Dr. Goree. Tonight, I will be presenting information on the district's strategic plan in our efforts to achieve academic goals. Our focus is on making targeted adjustments and optimizing our resources to ensure that we have the best

educational outcomes for students. At the last board meeting, I presented an update on our district's strategic goals, Priority 3, personnel and professional development with Goal 1 being focused on supporting uncertified teachers in achieving their teacher certification. We also reviewed Priority 4, fiscal stewardship and operational excellence with Goal 1, ensuring that we have effective financial management to obtain compliance and to support optimal outcomes for our students. And Goal 2, aiming to enhance our overall operational efficiency and the quality of district services. Today's presentation will review these goals and our ongoing efforts to advance them.

Tonight, we'll highlight the key objectives that impact student learning and district effectiveness reflecting on our commitment to continuous improvement. Reducing teacher vacancies ensures classrooms have highly qualified educators, ensuring that students receive high quality instruction. And this is the top priority for our district. Also, we aim to increase the number of expert educators in the classroom to enhance student success with skilled and knowledgeable educators. We want to strengthen the support for new teachers through mentorship and development, helping them to succeed and stay in the profession long term. We're committed to fiscally responsible operations, aligning our decisions with priorities while staying within budget constraints. These goals are interconnected and are crucial for educational excellence in supporting our teachers, students, and the district resources. Today's focus will be on the program change and restructuring our structural support from central office to directly impact student achievement in the classroom.

So, what is a program change? At the last meeting we reviewed, a program change may occur for various reasons, such as a redirection of resources, efforts to improve efficiency, changes in enrollment, a lack of student response to specific course offerings, legislative revisions or reorganization or consolidation of schools, departments, or a district.

On the next slide, I will be presenting a proposed change for the instructional support specialists currently part of our central office curriculum and instruction department who provide support district-wide. This proposed change is designed to better align with the district's goals of maximizing student outcomes while also maintaining fiscal responsibility. We are proposing a new instructional support model that will replace 19 instructional support specialist positions with 11 instructional coaches. This change aims to bring our most effective educators closer to the classroom, directly impacting student achievement. Acton, Billhartz, and Daniel, all comprehensive and targeted improvement campuses will each have a full-time instructional coach with the aid of grant funding.

The remaining elementary schools will be paired to share instructional coaches ensuring support across all campuses. Each middle school will have its own instructional coach while the high school will have two. Instructional coaches will be assigned to the campus working directly with the campus principal to enhance student achievement rather than being centrally located under the leadership of the C&I department. Instructional support specialists who are not hired as instructional coaches will transition to teacher positions that receive the mentor stipend. These teachers will be assigned to various campuses, assuming the role of teacher of record for a classroom. They will receive compensation based on their years of experience in alignment with the teacher's salary schedule, along with an additional \$7,500 stipend for their mentoring and coaching responsibilities. This stipend on top of their teacher salary is to incentivize our best educators to remain in the district and work directly with students and it's also going to compensate them for the additional responsibilities that they would have

as a teacher mentor.

Mentor teachers will provide coaching and guidance to support their peers while directly working with and teaching students. We are excited about this transition because it allows students to receive direct teaching from some of our best educators in the district. This restructuring ensures that we are placing our expert educators in classrooms, driving student achievement goals, and fostering improved teaching practices district wide.

Campus principals will provide mentor teachers with structured time for mentoring. Mentor teachers will be responsible for a variety of duties including but not limited to serving as the classroom teacher of record, co-teaching and modeling lessons for their peers, and delivering professional development on the campus in alignment with best teaching practices.

We want to assure that no staff member will lose their job that is in good standing. So, all the instructional support specialists that are in good standing will have a job with the district and that no one would be losing their job due to the program change. All current employees in good standing will retain the position with the district. This goal is to align resources more effectively to support student achievement and to improve teaching structures. Again, we want to prioritize classroom instruction and teacher support. Mentor teachers will provide essential mentoring and coaching, strengthening, and helping the teachers to continuously approve across campuses. Our goal is to align both financial and human resources to support student achievement. It is recommended that the board vote to approve the resolution as presented in alignment with DFFB (Local). Are there any questions?

Trustee Savage-Martin asked. Have all those that are involved in this change been notified?

Ms. Brown replied. Yes, Dr. Nix and I met with them, and we discussed the proposed change pending board approval. And so, we did meet with them and pending board approval, we would have another meeting.

Trustee Savage-Martin commented. So that means some teacher out there that hasn't been talked to won't be scared that we're fixing to reduce.

Ms. Brown Replied. No, they're all aware. We had a face-to-face meeting, and it was with the group. We answered any questions they had and so-

Trustee Savage-Martin commented. Perfect. Thank you.

Trustee Savage-Martin made a motion to approve the resolution declaring a reduction in force due to a program change with the identified employment areas affected; Trustee McNeely seconded the motion. Motion carries 6-0.

D. INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE POLICE DEPARTMENTS OF DUNCANVILLE AND DALLAS ISDs (ILA)
Chief Max Geron

President Dr. Flowers stated. There is no presentation needed.

Trustee Savage-Martin made a motion to approve the public safety system inter-local agreement between Duncanville and Dallas IDs; Trustee McNeely seconded the motion. Motion carries 6-0.

E. TRANSFINDER AGREEMENT Mari Zamora

President Dr. Flowers stated. There is no presentation needed.

Trustee Veracruz made a motion to approve the agreement from Transfinder for software license hosting and hardware exceeding \$50,000; Trustee Savage-Martin seconded the motion. Motion carries 6-0.

F. DISTRICT, CAMPUS AND TARGETED IMPROVEMENT PLANS Dr. Sam Nix

Dr. Sam Nix presented District, Campus and Targeted Improvement Plans. Thank you. Good evening, Madam President, Members of the Board, Dr. Goree. Texas State Law requires that the district campus and target improvement plans be developed, be presented, and be approved through a formal process that involves public input and board approval. So, I would like to invite Dr. Lewis, our Executive Director of Academic Support, to present on all three phases of this plan as she has facilitated and supported the campuses throughout this process.

Dr. Melanie Lewis added to the presentation. Good evening, President Flowers, Board of Trustees, and Dr. Goree. Tonight, I'm going to speak with you all concerning our improvement plan process that we utilize in Duncanville ISD. Last month I spoke of how the process was for our plan, so I'm going to review briefly and then give you some new information based on some questions.

So, in compliance with law, Duncanville ISD School Board shall approve annually the process under which the district and campus improvement plans are developed to ensure stakeholder input was gathered and it is in compliance with all mandated components.

In Duncanville ISD, we've been in compliance with BQA and BQB Legal. All members of a decision-making committee must meet these standards. So, for our district level, we do the District Educational Improvement Committee, which is our DEIC. And for each campus, they have a site-based decision-making committee. Two-thirds of the members of those committees are comprised of classroom teachers, a non-teaching professional, community members, parents, business members, and a district professional. Members do not serve longer than a two-year term when making decisions.

All campus plans are aligned to our district strategic plan and our four priorities. Every goal and strategy are directly aligned to our district priority statements.

For state and federal, we have two accountability systems. We have our state accountability system, which is an A-through-F letter grade, and it measures our overall school performance in three domains,

which are Student Achievement, School Progress, and Closing the Gaps. Closing the Gaps, which is our domain three, is our federal accountability system. So, Every Student Succeeds Act was passed in 2015 and it ensured that we're in compliance and have equity protections, so it really has districts where we have to pay attention to our special population of students.

School identifications for federal accountability began in 2018. A school can receive a designation of comprehensive support or targeted support or additional targeted support. So that's our CSI, our TSI and our ATSI.

Improvement plans are required for every campus that is Title I, as well as a targeted improvement plan for every campus that has a designation from the federal accountability system.

I want to explain Domain 3 a little bit. In Domain 3, there are four types of student groups that we're looking at for accountability. The first group is all students. Then the two lowest-performing racial and ethnic populations of 10 or more are for group two and three. And then the fourth group is our high focus. That includes our special education students, our economically disadvantaged, our emergent, bilingual, high-mobility homeless, migrant, and foster.

The calculation breakdown for Domain 3 is significant. It's important to note that academic achievement, which is 30% of our Domain 3 rating, is based on students that score meets or above in the areas of reading and math. Academic growth accounts for 50% of our Domain 3 and our English language proficiency, which is our TELPAS testing, accounts for 10%. Then our STAAR component, which is our SQSS, is what it stands for on our accountability report, and the STAAR components are for all other contents of all students and their performance on the accountability.

Comprehensive support, that CSI designation that I mentioned earlier, a campus is given a CSI designation when they are in the lowest 5% of their comparison group. So, their lowest 5% of Domain 3, which is the Closing the Gaps, as well as lowest percentile and overall campus scaled scores. Currently, in Duncanville, we have one school with a CSI designation, and that is Bilhartz Elementary.

For targeted support, it is when a student group is considered consistently underperforming and if it misses the target in at least three of the same indicators for three years in a row. Currently, we have Acton Elementary and Daniel Intermediate that hold a TSI designation. We do have first-year monitoring of two of our campuses, which are Central and Byrd Middle School.

There are a couple of important points that I want us to consider on this next slide. For 2023 and 2024, it is important to note that we have not received letter grades from the State of Texas. It is still pending litigation and there has not been any. We have predictions of what are on this slide that you're seeing.

Note that in 2019, at the beginning of federal designations being given, 15 of our campuses in Duncanville ISD at the time had a federal designation. We have made progress over time and been very diligent in ensuring that we're closing the gaps with our students. Currently, in 2024, notice that we do have the TSI, two campuses, we have our CSI campus as mentioned, and then we have our first-year monitoring for the two. In 2023, when we received our federal designations, we applied for the Effective Schools Framework grant so that we could be very intentional about what we did to address these needs. With the Effective Schools Framework grant, eight of our campuses have participated since 2023, and it is a two-year grant.

With our progress, and here we are in 2025, of our eight campuses that had that federal designation in 2023, we now have three. That number has gone down to three. So, it's been our ability to track our progress, our systems with TEA regular communications, they've done site visits, and we've worked with our regional service center as well and provided very intentional professional development to those campuses. And so, we can celebrate that Smith, Merrifield, Hyman, Alexander, and Hastings no longer have a federal school improvement designation.

With the federal requirements, as well as the grant requirements, in your packets and board book, you do have targeted improvement plans for eight campuses, even though only three are now required to do a targeted improvement plan. It's part of the ESF grant that it's required for those campuses, even though they have come out of federal school improvement.

Some professional development that we participated in over the last two years. Every campus that was under the Effective Schools Framework grant received a very detailed diagnostic, which included TEA site visits, attending data meetings, our PLC protocols, as well as just everyday operations of our campuses and instructional classroom walks. They receive extensive training on accountability practices, recognizing high-quality instructional materials, lesson alignment, and on observation and feedback cycles to ensure that teachers were being supported in the classroom.

The Effective Schools Framework grant does end in May of 2025. This was our final year for participating. Bilhartz Elementary has an added layer of support. So, Bilhartz is under what is now called the Foundational Leadership Instructional Practices and Systems. They receive ongoing professional learning in instructional practices, and there's real support for their administrative team. They learned to achieve an A-team, processes, systems planning, monitoring the learning, and have ongoing learning labs.

Our district actions and response to the needs are we did apply for the LASO 3 and received the LASO 3 grant with professional learning community support so that we can continue the work. We've seen progress and we want to continue the work that we've started. We also have targeted interventions. We're going to provide the high-quality instructional materials through our curriculum recently that the board adopted. Also have ongoing professional learning, and we're going to continue the Get Better Faster observation and feedback cycles.

These actions by the district were placed in the targeted improvement plan, whereas in the past, targeted improvement plans focused on the campuses' actions. This year, the requirement from TEA is that the district actions had to be answered. So, what are we as a district doing to ensure that our campuses are being provided with the support that they need? These are the actions that we have committed to and we're going to continue to monitor and support our campuses.

The recommendation is we ask the board to approve the district, campus, and targeted improvement plans for the '24-'25 school year. And at this time, it'll be my pleasure to answer any questions that you may have.

Trustee Veracruz made a motion to approve district and campus improvement plans priorities and goals, and the campus targeted improvement plans for the '24-'25 school year; Trustee McNeely seconded the motion.

Trustee Savage-Martin asked. On the decision-making committee, which also serves as the site-based decision-making group, I guess, I'm kind of confused. Two-thirds classroom teachers. So, let's say there's 50 teachers on a campus, two-thirds of them serve on this committee?

Dr. Lewis replied. So, for the site-based decision-making committee, yes, two-thirds of the committee members must be classroom teachers. For the district, it is two-thirds complete for... So, we have a total representation from every campus. Every campus goes through a nomination process, and they vote, and those individuals represent their campus for the District Improvement Committee.

Trustee Savage-Martin asked. And then you said they serve only two years. Does half of them... I don't know how to ask this question. Do you know what I'm fixing to ask?

Trustee Fahey asked commented. Can half go on, half go off?

Trustee Savage-Martin asked. Yes. Is it half-and-half or is it even greater?

Dr. Lewis replied. Every year when they go through the nomination process, for example, let's say Hyman has a teacher that has been nominated this year, it's with an understanding that they're going to serve two consecutive years. And then maybe Merrifield has a teacher that served last year, but this year they have one more year, so they would actually nominate someone else for the following year.

Trustee Savage-Martin commented. So, you're not always reinventing the wheel in that committee. There's some that have served one year, because I think that would be good

Dr. Lewis replied. Yes, exactly.

Trustee Savage-Martin asked. Do you have trouble getting business members or community members?

Dr. Lewis replied. It depends. This year, we didn't have any problems. We had great representation from Dallas College, we had community members. The principals were key in helping us with community members and business partners, those that they have partnerships with that work on the campuses, and they nominated them, and they gladly serve.

Trustee Fahey commented and asked. Thank you for your presentation. Some of the attendance sheets show poor attendance, like three out of 10 or four out of 11. When someone misses a meeting, are they informed of what happened and any thought of replacing them? I mean, I would want more than three people to show up.

Dr. Lewis replied. That's a great question. So, when a person is on the committee, they receive the information because we still need their input. A lot of the input they receive, we use Google Docs so that they can provide their input to any questions, any business that we have conducted. And it depends. For the district committee, we have really good attendance, so it will vary on a campus. It's based on if the principal is in communication with those individuals. But for the district, we've had good participation.

Trustee Fahey commented and asked. Thank you for those attendance sheets also. One more thing, the last paragraph on the plan sheets, I suppose those are copy-and-paste because they're alike and they all have PTA meetings, but I know that all these campuses don't have PTAs. Are these another form of parent meetings?

Dr. Lewis replied. Yes, ma'am. For the campus-based dates, if they had a site-based decision-making committee or if they had parent meetings, those are the parent meetings that are on the forms, and they should vary. The dates vary based on the campuses or when they held their particular meetings.

Motion carries 6-0.

G. CONSIDERATION OF 2025-2026 ACADEMIC CALENDAR Dr. Sam Nix

Dr. Sam Nix presented Consideration of 2025-2026 Academic Calendar. Madam President, members of the board, Dr. Goree, I'm honored to present the recommended academic calendar for the '25-'26 school year.

Our first priority was to assemble a committee that reflected the diverse perspectives within our community within our district. This committee included teachers, campus administrators, central office staff, parents, and community stakeholders. Additionally, as recommended by the board, we were honored to have the presence of Dallas College to further enrich the discussion and the decision-making process. So, thank you for that, Board.

Our key considerations, as usual, were to ensure a minimum of 75,600 instructional minutes for the school year to ensure that we had three teacher workdays, and to ensure that we had 187 teacher contract days for the calendar.

In your board books, you'll find a detailed breakdown of the three optional calendars surveyed by our district stakeholders, along with definitions of key terms used in the calendar, but this slide provides a brief overview of those three optional calendars. I'd like to draw your attention to that last box there because there's verbiage there we haven't used in the past. The verbiage there is professional learning team days, and we used to call that planning days for teachers. But the reason that the committee decided to change that verbiage is because the committee wanted to really focus on the fact that those planning days are not siloed days, that teachers don't just work in silos or that's not the expectation, that they collaborate, that they work with others as well as work with the things that they need to do, but naming it professional learning team days as opposed to planning days, the committee just thought that that would be an appropriate change for that. So, that's what we did there on that calendar.

Board, as you can see, three options. The first option is Calendar A, and some of the highlights for Calendar A is that the students start school in the week of August the 11th. The last day of school is after Memorial Day. There's one week of fall break in October, and the committee loved that fall break, and it includes zero PDCE days.

I want to pause here. Even though you have the definition for PDCE, I want to just make sure that I explain that. PDCE are the professional development credit exchange days. We have to have 187

teacher contract days. So, if the teachers adopt a calendar that has less than that number of days for the teachers, they need to be able to make those up in some kind of way. So, to do professional development on their own time outside of the school day would suffice for a holiday. They wanted a holiday every month or something of that nature. They must accrue a certain number of professional development days in order to have a particular day off, so that's what a PDCE day is.

For Calendar A, first semester, 92 teacher workdays and 82 student school days. For the second semester, you see 92 teacher workdays and 91 student school days for a total of 187 teacher workdays and 173 student school days. High level.

I'm shifting now to Calendar B, and you'll see a major difference between Calendar A and B is that the last day of school is prior to Memorial Day on this calendar. In addition to that, the inclusion of four PDCE days in this calendar, and there are four less student school days for this calendar. And this calendar most resembles the calendar that we had this year, but just as a note.

Then lastly, Calendar C, and you'll see the difference. The biggest difference here is that Calendars B and C are very similar and that they both have the last day of school prior to Memorial Day, they both have four PDCE days, but Calendar C aligns with calendar A in terms of the number of student days with 172.

The committee whittled down to these three options, and we were able to send out a survey to all our stakeholders. The survey went out February the 18th, that's when it opened both in English and Spanish, and it was open until February the 28th. We had the opportunity to work with our communications department and we had 1,137 responses from four groups of stakeholders.

As you can see from the results of the survey, the first question, 16.7% of our survey responders were students, and we were proud about that. We were happy to see that we had that many students that were interested in their calendar. We had 40, basically 40.5% were parents or guardians, and then of course almost 41% staff members, and we had 2% community member feedback. Then, as you can see at the bottom, the calendar that our stakeholders have voted on overwhelmingly would be sample Calendar B with a 56% approval rating for that calendar.

When the survey was sent out to all of our stakeholders, once again, everything was sent out in English and in Spanish, and all of the terms, everything that you have in your book, all of that was provided to all of our stakeholders so they would understand all of those terms, what they were voting on, what it looked like. They had all that information as they voted.

The recommendation is that we recommend that the board adopt Calendar Option B as the '25-'26 academic calendar as voted on by our stakeholders, and it will be my pleasure to answer any question that you may have at this time.

Trustee Veracruz made a motion to approve the Academic Calendar Draft B as presented for the 2025-2026 academic school year; Trustee McNeely seconded the motion.

Trustee Fahey commented. Thank you, Dr. Nix, for your presentation. I told myself I wasn't going to mention this this year because I mentioned it last year. I love these pie graphs, but the second pie graph tells me nothing of the above graph. I don't know how many parents or students or teachers voted on these choices. It said it could have been 56%, it could have been all the teachers, or it could have been all the parents and students. I would like to see how that first pie graph breaks down maybe in a third

pie. Because I would really like to know.

Dr. Nix replied. Yes ma'am. Thank you. We will get you that information.

Trustee Savage-Martin commented. I was going to say I love how systemic it is. It's very organized and we've really improved this system over the 13 years that I've been part of this process. So, I really like it. Maybe add her little part, but it's very good. Thank you.

Motion carries 6-0.

H. AP SEMINAR Dr. Sam Nix

Dr. Sam Nix presented AP Seminar. Thank you Board. This is a wonderful opportunity for our students. This is the approval of an additional course. This is an AP Seminar. An AP seminar is an innovative college level course that is designated to develop students' ability to analyze, to evaluate and to communicate complex ideas effectively. This foundational course fosters critical thinking, research skills and collaboration, essential competencies for success in college and careers. Districts must have Board approval to implement innovative courses. The course will satisfy elective credit towards graduation requirement.

I think it's important to note that Texas is unique in that this course is a very selective course in other states where you have to be selected to be able to offer this particular class. However, in Texas, you do not have to be selected. It is something that we can offer. So, this is a wonderful opportunity for our students. Some of the key benefits for that is that it prepares students for college and career success. It enhances students' ability to research, to synthesize information and construct evidence-based arguments. Cross-curricular learning encourages interdisciplinary thinking by engaging students in the real world and academic issues through multiple perspectives, develops essential 21st century skills, strengthening students' ability to be able to be analytical thinkers, collaboration and communication with the workforce demands that are upcoming.

And then increases passing rates on AP exams. You know that's a big thing for us. We've really got to focus on making sure that our students are performing as best as they can as critical thinkers on those AP exams. College board reports that students who take AP Seminar are more likely to achieve a passing score on subsequent AP courses compared with students who have not completed AP Seminar. The biggest, I think anyway, one of the best parts of this is that at the end of the year, their Capstone projects are so amazing. And what students are able to produce, how they're able to think and how they're able to analyze as part of their projects is really a great option for them. So, the recommendation is that the board move to approve the AP seminar for the 25-26 school year to expand rigorous academic opportunities for students, strengthen college and career readiness and enhance interdisciplinary learning. Board, it would be my pleasure to answer any question that you may have.

Trustee Veracruz made a motion to approve AP Seminar for the 2025-2026 school year; Trustee Savage-Martin seconded the motion.

Trustee Fahey asked. Do we already have a teacher identified to teach this class who's already on our

staff?

Dr. Nix replied. Thank you for asking. Yes. This will not be an additional FTE for our district. This will be taught by a current teacher at the high school.

Trustee Fahey asked. No additional cost or anything?

Dr. Nix replied. No additional cost.

Trustee Savage-Martin asked. Is this for senior level students?

Dr. Nix replied. Yes. This will be offered 9 through 12.

Trustee Savage-Martin commented. So, you need to be there for that choice presentation to make sure they know about this.

President Dr. Flowers commented and asked. Dr. Nix, Texas schools must meet certain criteria to be able to offer this AP Seminar, but I don't remember what it is. Do you know it off the top of your head? Because I know every high school can't offer it. There's a certain criterion that we had to meet.

Dr. Sam Nix replied. Yes ma'am. I don't want to misspeak. I can get that to the Board.

President Dr. Flowers commented. It's okay. I was just going to brag on us a little bit.

Motion carries 6-0.

I. APPROVAL OF TASB POLICY UPDATE 124 Andrea Fields

President Dr. Flowers stated. There is no presentation needed.

Trustee Savage-Martin made a motion to approve the adoption of Texas Association of School Board policy update 124 as not presented but stated; Trustee Veracruz seconded the motion. Motion carries. 6-0.

J. APPROVAL OF CONSTRUCTION MANAGER AT RISK (CMAR) CONTRACT GUARANTEED MAXIMUM PRICE
Andrea Fields

Ms. Andrea Fields presented Approval of Construction Manager At Risk (CMAR) Contract Guaranteed Maximum Price. Good evening, Dr. Flowers, the board of trustees and Dr. Goree again, it is my great pleasure to present to you for your approval the guaranteed maximum price for our high school's career technical education building and the renovations to area M, which is most people would know as the

9th Grade Center. I have with me tonight Mr. Kamar Haque with LAN. Also Mr. John Fisher with Sedalco.

You have in front of you a different item that was inside of your book. It's at your place. The bottom line is the same. There was just one of the things that we had to correct that was an error that was on the original and they've corrected that after your Board book went out Friday before spring break. So, the total did not change. We just had to correct something that was carried over inadvertently and it will be discussed at the next GMP.

Of course, we are asking you and you have all the items really booked it out for you what the costs will be. This is for the design building of the CTE and the renovations of Area M at the high school. We'll come back to you for area J. Probably in April we'll have a better idea of that. And tonight, Board, I'm going to ask that you would approve the guaranteed maximum price for the construction of the career and technical education building and renovations of Area M 9th Grade Center at Duncanville High School, the total of \$32,540,399 and provides Sedalco Construction with notice to proceed with this project. At this time, I know you need to take your motion, but we'll be here if you have any specific questions about anything that's before you.

Trustee Savage-Martin made a motion to approve the Guaranteed Maximum Price (GMP) for the construction of the Duncanville High School Career and Technical Education building and the renovation of area M of DHS as presented in the amount of \$32,540,399 and provide Sedalco Construction, Inc. notice to proceed on this project; Trustee Fahey seconded the motion. Motion carries 6-0.

K. PURCHASE OVER \$50,000 - CLASSROOM AND TEACHING AND LEARNING REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL #24-25.003

Dr. Brian Brown

Dr. Brian Brown presented Purchase Over \$50,000 - Classroom and Teaching and Learning Request for Proposal #24-25.003. Good evening, Madam President, Board of Trustees and Dr. Goree. It is my pleasure to present for your consideration tonight the results of the classroom teaching and learning requests for proposal.

Our purpose financially supported by Proposition B of the 2023 bond is to equip all Duncanville ISD classrooms with 21st century teaching and learning technologies. Let me begin by introducing the selection committee. I have Ms. Dolores Guillen, a librarian, Ms. Khammay Escoto, and India Jett, both teachers as well as also being part of our tech ambassador program so they're tech-sperts. We're joined with Laurie Toben, who's the Director of Special Education for Compliance, our instructional technology coordinators, Devin Hanes, Ja'Dorian Tate-Richardson, and Monica Napier. And finally, Adontae Thompkins, district technician. And then of course as the Chief Technology officer, I chaired the selection committee. Could you all stand?

I do appreciate the effort that they put in. This nine-member selection committee was responsible for reviewing more than 1100 pages of the 15 accepted RFP responses. The requirements for the RFP were developed over the course of two years by the Technology Advisory Committee or TAC, a larger group composed of staff members from across the district. A list of the TAC members involved in developing the requirements can be found in your board packet on page 364. As designed by TAC, the RFP was

divided into five categories, interactive flat panel, laptop computer, document camera, mobile teaching station, and mobile charging solution. The RFP was issued on December 11, 2024, and closed on January 24, 2025.

Following the initial proposal review and first round of scoring, the committee selected four vendors to conduct live demonstrations for a second round of evaluation, which took place on February 25th and 27th. After this process, the committee selected three vendors to which award the RFP to ensure the best pricing and most effectively meet the district's needs for classroom teaching and learning. United Data Technologies was selected to provide Lenovo yoga laptops and Bretford cube carts. Bloom was selected to provide HoverCam mobile teaching stations and Global Asset was selected to provide one screen interactive flat panels and IPEVO document cameras.

Beginning in July, 2025, we will deploy interactive flat panels, teaching stations and document cameras to every campus except for the ones that are under construction. So, the ones that will be under construction, Smith Central, Brandenburg and Duncanville High School will all receive new equipment in the summer of 2026 or a phase two. We will deploy approximately 60% of our classrooms this first year and the other 40% next year. This phased approach, while being relatively short, will better assist the district when being able to handle replacements for this equipment in the years to come. The mobile charging solution will only be deployed to middle school and high school classrooms because the elementary classrooms already have charging carts. Laptop computers will begin being deployed to teachers in April and May, so just for the next two months. Teacher training for the interactive flat panels and document cameras will begin before the end of the school year, continue through the summer and into the fall. I'm happy to answer any questions you may have.

Trustee Savage-Martin made a motion to award the request for proposal 24-25.003 for classroom teaching and learning technologies as presented; Trustee Fahey seconded the motion.

Trustee Savage-Martin asked. Since Merrifield's becoming a parent center, they probably-

Dr. Brown replied. Not yet.

Trustee Savage-Martin commented. Not yet. Not next year. So sorry. You proceed.

Motion carries 6-0.

9. INFORMATION/DISCUSSION AGENDA

A. RACIAL PROFILING REPORT Chief Max Geron

Chief Max Geron presented Racial Profiling Report. Now Madam President, honorable board members and Dr. Goree, what you have before you is a report that the State of Texas has required police departments to complete since about 2001. The requirements have evolved over the years, but it basically tells every police department in the state of Texas that you have to capture certain data points related to your motor vehicle stops and report those not only to the state, but report those numbers and then have those numbers analyzed against your population to determine whether or not racial

profiling is being conducted by your police department.

The report you have before you show that the Duncanville Independent School District Police Department is not engaged in racial profiling, I'm happy to say. We made a total of four traffic stops last year. And so therefore, we are required, we're not exempt from the requirement to report that. And so, each year the state requires that not only do we report that to them, analyze that, but we also report that to our governing body, which as you're aware is you. We will endeavor each year before March 1st to provide this information to you as required by law. I'm happy to address any questions. I will add that we had no complaints about racial profiling last year either.

Trustee Fahey asked. So, would this be running a red light, a stop sign around a school speeding school zone? I mean obviously, elementary students and middle schools are not going to be involved. So, were most of the stops parents or were some high school kiddos?

Chief Geron replied. I don't have the information about exactly who was stopped.

Carla Fahey commented. I just wondered. No big. I'm cool. I just wondered if it was like four students or were they half parents, half students? Don't worry about it.

Chief Geron replied. While traffic enforcement is not our primary focus, it is a necessary empowerment for the police officers. Should there be a crime, they would absolutely need to potentially make a vehicle stop. So, it puts us in the category of having to report.

B. LEGISLATIVE PRIORITIES Connie Wallace

Ms. Connie Wallace presented Legislative Priorities. Good evening, President Flowers, Board of Trustees and Dr. Goree. The 89th legislative session officially began on Tuesday, January the 14th at noon. Since then, many bills have been brought before the legislative bodies and you guys have been receiving weekly updates in your Board update. Our purpose is to ensure that legislators are equipped to oppose or advocate for legislation that addresses the needs and values of our district. And so, what you have before you is a draft of priorities that reflect the mission and vision of Duncanville ISD and target our strategic priorities.

For example, we are asking the legislative body to focus on school funding, specifically increasing the basic allotment, fund full day pre-K. We are also asking them to increase funding for Technology and Instructional Material Allotment, TIMA. As it relates to teaching and learning, we are asking the legislative body to revise House Bill 4545 from the 87th legislative session. When it comes to safety and security, we are mostly focusing on those unfunded mandates. We're asking them to increase the school safety allotment. And when it comes to recruitment, our ability to recruit and retain teachers, we're asking to have the legislative priority of continuing the TRS defined benefit program and address the rising healthcare costs.

In front of you, you have our drafted priorities, and we ask that between now and March 31, if you guys have any questions or suggestions for enhancing that, let us know so that we can update this document

and bring it back to you on the 31st for your vote and approval. Are there any questions, comments, or suggestions?
10. COMMUNICATIONS FROM CITIZENS
There were no communications from citizens
11. ADJOURNMENT at 8:48 PM
Trustee Fahey made a motion to adjourn the meeting; Trustee Veracruz seconded the motion.
Du T Lamar Caraa
Dr. T. Lamar Goree
Superintendent of Schools

Board Secretary

Board President